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The Frankish Building is a 3-story high commercial and residential build-
ing located on the southwest corner of Euclid Avenue and Transit Street
in the City of Ontario, California (see Photo lg. In an article on
Charles Frankish, printed in 1915, The (Ontario) Daily Report stated:

"One of the latest undertakings of the Frankish Company for the
promotion of the city's best interests, is the erection of the
handsome stone, brick and reinforced concrete business block at
the southwest corner of Euclid Avenue and Commercial Court
(Transit Street), known as the Frankish Building."

The building's ground plan 1s rectangular with a court recess in the
west side (rear - see Photo 4)., 1Its two street elevations abut the
sidewalk with parking space on the other two sides. Beneath the ground
floor there is a large basement., The second and third floors contain
the Charlemagne Apartments: 32 units, 16 on each floor, consisting of
two to four rooms. The entrance lobby to the Charlemagne Apartments 1is
located at the midpoint of the Transit Street elevation (see Photo 2).
An elevator in the lobby serves all floors. Quoting again from the
1915, Frankish article, The Daily Report stated:

"The ground floor of this building, below which is a commodious
basement, will be devoted probably entirely to merchantile or
financial establishments, while the second and third floors are
being fitted for very high-class and modern living apartments
and offices. An elevator will connect all floors. The central
location of this building, together with the beautiful views it
commands of the mountains and of City Hall Park (site of present
City Hall), make it particularly desirable for a high-grade
apartment house.

"The living apartments on the second and third floors, of from
two to four roomes in size and thirty-two in number, are to be
strictly modern in every sense of the word."

The Frankish Buillding has architectural characteristics of the Second
Renaissance Revival Style that was popular in the United States from
1890 to 1915, and of the earlier Romano-Tuscan Mode of the Renaissance
Revival Style. ‘

These styles were used extensively for public buildings. This may
account for the fact that the Post Office was housed within the ground
floor of the Frankish Building prior to construction of the old Post
Office building on the southeast corner of Transit Street and Laurel
Avenue,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Frankish Building is reflected in its architecture
and in its association with Charles Frankish, after whom it was named.

Designed by Charles Frankish and his son, Hugh, and constructed under
their immediate supervicion in 1915-16, the Frankish Building represents
a third era in the history of Ontario - an era of stabllity and constant
growth, Its setting, on historic, beautiful Euclid Avenue (1882) with
its center parkway fountain, erected by George Chaffey in 1883, is a
block north of the historic Ontario State "Bank Block" building.

When Charles Frankish designed and built the Frankish Buillding in 1915-
16, the same standard of achievement and excellence with which he was
assgociated in all his endeavors was incorporated into the architecture of
"his" building. This fact has been detailed in the statement of
description, and it is still in evidence today, as the building aptly
atteste,

Charles Frankish moved to Ontario in 1885, after trading his 10-acre
citrus ranch in nearby Riverside for 80 acres of undeveloped land on
Euclid Avenue, south of the Southern Pacific railroad tracks. He moved
to Ontario because he firmly believed in what the Chaffey brothers were
attempting to accomplish with their planned "Model Colony", and because
he foresaw Ontario's potential for growth and development.

Charles Frankish Jjoined with a small group of investors, which included
G. T. Stamm of Los Angeles, to organize the Ontario Land and Improvement
Company, after learning that the Chaffey brothers were planning to sell
their interest in the "Model Colony". In February 1886, Charles Frankish
assumed his responsibilities as President and Manager of the newly
formed company.

When the Chaffey brothers departed for Australia in March of 1886, all
their holdings in Ontario were purchasged by the Land and Improvement
Company. Charles Frankish took on a more active role in the promotion
and sale of the company's landholdings than any of the other investors.
Under his management, the company sold $1,015,000 of real estate within
the first two years.
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Architectural characteristics of the two Renaissance Revival Styles in
the Frankish Bullding include: The straightforward facade without any
considerable projections or recessions; the roof, invisible to the
spectator on the street; the symmetrical elevations; rusticated quoins
and ground floor walls and columns, and the smooth and plain upper-
story wall surfaces serving as a neutral background for the windows,

The Frankish Buillding was constructed of reinforced concrete, precast
concrete blocks (art stone), cement plaster and glazed white brick.
The ground floor street elevations have large plate glass windows with
columne 1In between., The second and third floors have double-hung
windows with projected plain lintels and lugsills of precast concrete,
Topping the street sides of the bullding is a plain wooden cornice with
decorative brackets at each corner and parapet wall above., The street
intersection corner of the building is cut off on a 45 degree diagonal
of sufficient width for the main, ground floor entrance, The ceiling
of the first floor consists of grids of ornately designed pressed tin
pans,

Quoting again from the 1915, Frankish article, The Daily Report stated:

"It is the most handsome and substantial business block in the city
and it 1s doubtful if it would be possible to erect one more simply -
ornate and beautiful, It was built from their own (Charles

Frankish and his son Hugh H. Frankish) designs and under theilr own
immediate supervision. Indeed the exquisite art stone, of which it
is largely built, was made from their own formula, right on the
ground, and might almost be said to be an 'epoch' in the art of
stone making, as it 1s a marvel, even to men largely experienced

in this line.,"

"Practically the entire work of construction of this handsome
building has been under the direct supervision of Mr, Frankish or
of his son, Hugh H. Frankish., Nothing but the best of materials
have been used and all workmanship has been of the highest quality
so that this three-story ediface is quite as substantiasl as it

is handsome,"

Today, some 60 years later, that adherence to perfection and the
quality of materials and workmanship are clearly evident,.
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The only visible alteration to the building is the addition of a
metal and glass canopy, supported by heavy metal chains, over the
Charlemagne Apartments lobby entrance (see Photo 2).

The getting in which the Frankish Building was constructed remains
much the same as when 1t was buillt, It still faces City Hall Park and
Euclid Avenue on the east, . The historic fountain erected by George
Chaffey in 1883, is still located in the center parkway of Euclid
Avenue about half a block to the south. The main business district
still begins immediately to the north., The historic old "Bank Block"
bullding is still standing between the Union Pacific and Southern
Pacific raillroad tracks about a block south.

Ttem Number 8 -- continued

Charles Frankish also took an active role in the planning and develop-
ment of Ontario. He was responsible for planning almost all of the city:
south of the Southern Pacific tracks. Under his personal supervision,
in 1886, Euclid Avenue was extended south from the Southern Pacific
tracks to Ely Street, the city's southern limit, He had stone gutters
installed along Fuclid Avenue to handle flood waters, doing much of the
construction himself, Under his guidance in 1887, the Ontario and San
Antonio Heighte Rallroad Company was organized., It was essentlally a
subsidiary company of the Land and Improvement Company which bhas
proposed construction of the railroad. The railroad was designed
exclusively for transporting people along Fuclid Avenue between the
Southern Pacific tracks in Ontario and 24th Street in San Antonio
Heights, a distance of about 6.2 miles., The first system of electric
lights in Ontario was installed under the supervision of Charles
Frankish in 1895, and managed by him until its sale in 1901, Charles
Frankish helped to establish the first bank in Ontario -- the Ontario
State Bank -- in 1887, serving veriously as its Secretary, Vice Presi-
dent, President and Director. He formed and headed his own corpora-
tion, the Frankish Company, which bought out the Land and Improvement
Company in 1912, In a 1907 advertising campaign, the Frankish Company
used the slogan, "The City That Charms". This slogan was later adopted
by the City of Ontario as its official slogan. Charles Frankish also
served as Vice President of the Ontario People's Mutual Buillding and
Loan Associlation and as Director of the Ontario Chamber of Commerce
where he was known as a "One Man Chamber of Commerce'.
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continued --

In all, Charles Frankish served the City of Ontario for over 41 years,
gsparing neither effort nor capital in a community in which he believed,
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